From: Stewart McGarrity

Sent: 10 September 2009 12:22

To: Gregor Roberts

Subject: FW: The Curious Case of the 3 Wheeled Car and other fables - Private & Confidential
Attachments: BBS Deal 201207.doc

FYI

Stewart McGarrity
Finance Director

tie Limited
Mobile:07775 893023

From: Stewart McGarrity

Sent: 10 September 2009 11:49

To: Richard Jeffrey; David Mackay; Steven Bell; Graeme Bissett (external contact); Susan Clark; Alastair Richards -
TEL; Dennis Murray

Cc: 'Fitchie, Andrew'

Subject: The Curious Case of the 3 Wheeled Car and other fables - Private & Confidential

Private & Confidential
Book 1 - Weaselling in Weisbaden

Stop me if you think | keep sending history which is of little relevance to who prevails going forward. The moral high
ground is important in my personal value system as a starting point for anything. | forwarded the (unsigned)
Preferred Bidder Infraco evaluation report and Board Presentation to most of you on 19" August. At preferred
bidder (submission in August 07) approximately £50m of the BBS price was designated provisional on the basis of
insufficient design information — including £30m on structures, £11m on roads and £3m on tram stops.

Off our intrepid heroes go to Weisbaden in mid December 07 and return with tails wagging having negotiated a deal
which makes all these previously provisional items firm so long as design completion from 25" Nov 07 falls to be
classified as within “normal development and completion”. In return BSC get an £8m increase in the price. Our VE
register was also deducted from the price on the basis that conditions specific to each individual item was met. The
deltas are summarised in the table below.

Pref Bidder Deltas Weisbaden

Firm Prices 159,120,890 54,789,452A 213,910,342
Provisional Prices 49,579,452 (49,579,452) 0
VE taken into price- with conditions (13,818,006) (13,818,006)
Premium for firm price 8,000,000 8,000,000
(608,006) 208,092,336

Infraco Normalisation (Provisional Sums) 17,803,222 (7,633,132) 10,170,090

Negotiated BBS Price 226,503,564 (8,241,138)

A - In addition to making provisional prices fixed other items netting £5.2m (including NR Immunisation)
were moved into core scope from the Infraco Normalisation line

The text of the Weisbaden Agreement is attached. Can anybody see anything which says “3 wheels only chaps!” -

unless of course whole elements of the works were missing from the design information drawings issued to BBS up
to 25" Nov 07? There are subtle changes from the design development qualification in that agreement (eg the term
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“design intent” got lost) and the words which ended up in Sch pt4 reproduced below — | can’t judge whether these
changes make a difference or not.

Extract from Sch ptd of the final contract:
3.4 Pricing Assumptions are:

1 The Design prepared by the SDS Provider will not (other than amendments arising from the normal
development and completion of designs):

1.1 in terms of design principle, shape, form and/or specification be amended from the drawings
forming the Base Date Design Information (except in respect of Value Engineering identified in
Appendices C or D to this Schedule Part 4);

1.2 be amended from the scope shown on the Base Date Design Information and Infraco Proposals
as a consequence of any Third Party Agreement (except in connection with changes in respect of
Provisional Sums identified in Appendix B); and

1.3 be amended from the drawings forming the Base Date Design Information and Infraco Proposals
as a consequence of the requirements of any Approval Body.

For the avoidance of doubt normal development and completion of designs means the evolution of design
through the stages of preliminary to construction stage and excludes changes of design principle, shape and
form and outline specification.

In the engagements with BB and S in the dark days before the Princes St supplemental agreement, Mr Walker (god
bless him) would not be drawn on what we paid the £8m premium for. Maybe we should be asking for it back?

If we had time we might want to commission the following:

(1) Go through the final BBS bid submission (7" August 2007) and give it a thorough review for qualification
of quantities and scope from a QS perspective

(2) Track back through the late changes to the contract in the lead up to Financial Close and satisfy
ourselves that at no point did BBS’s incredibly smart lawyers manage to sneak in amendments to the
contract which effected a complete risk transfer on design back to us without the assembled might of
tie’'s commercial nous and legal Dobermans noticing.

Stewart

Stewart McGarrity
Finance Director
tie Limited

Mobile: N

From: Richard Jeffrey

Sent: 04 September 2009 15:33

To: David Mackay; Steven Bell; Graeme Bissett (external contact); Stewart McGarrity; Susan Clark
Subject: Meeting with BSC, what really happened!

General

We agreed that we have a fundamental disagreement over the contract.

We used the 3 wheeled car analogy

We agree that we all understand that what TIE want is a 4 wheeled car

We agree that at the time of letting the contract, only 3 wheels were designed, and the fourth wheel was still to be
designed.

BSC believe that they only priced for 3 wheels, and the fourth wheel was always going to be extra
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TIE believe that the contract price is for 4 wheels, but that there is scope to vary the price if the fourth wheel is
different. This is the fundamental nature of our dispute.

BSC believe that the contract is perverse and does not pass the common sense test, but it is what it is (this point is
important later)

Hilton Car Park
It took almost no time to agree that we should go straight to adjudication, but that BSC would condition this by
saying that it must go to the legal panel, not the financial panel, or else they would want to go to mediation.

| agreed to send this straight to the legal panel for adjudication

EOT1

Conversation as above. BSC very keen to go to the legal panel as they believe this whole issue turns on a strict legal
interpretation. They do not want a QS deciding on these complex legal issues and were concerned that a QS might
apply ‘common sense’. BSC’s point is that the contract is not necessarily sensible, but that is not the point, the point
is what is the strict legal interpretation of the contract, and this is best decided by a legal led panel.

We took a break and | consulted with our team. They were strongly of the view that, for exactly the reasons made
by BSC that we would want to go to the financial panel.

Given this we had no agreement so the issue goes to mediation.

Finally, at the end of the meeting BSC issued 2 DRP’s on Russell Road retaining wall and MUDFA delays.
We can discuss Monday.

Richard

Richard Jeffrey
Chief Executive

tie Limited

Citypoint

65 Haymarket Terrace
Edinburgh EH12 5HD

Direct Iine:M
Fax: 0131

Email: Richard.Jeffrey@tie.ltd.uk

www.edinburghtrams.com
www.tie.ltd
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